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          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good afternoon,

          3  everyone. And welcome to today's hearing on the

          4  Civil Service and Labor Committee.

          5                 My name is Joe Addabbo. I will be

          6  chairing the Committee today.

          7                 Again, welcome. Today's hearing we're

          8  doing in two parts. We have an intro and a reso.

          9  First we will do Intro. 350-A. That's an

         10  introduction which transfers certain functions of

         11  the Department of Transportation to the New York

         12  Police Department. And secondly, we have a

         13  resolution, Resolution 334, which pertains to mail

         14  order prescription drugs. We are first going to do

         15  the Introduction 350-A at the request of the Mayor.

         16                 Currently, New York City traffic

         17  rules and regulations and the New York State Vehicle

         18  and Traffic Laws are enforced primarily through New

         19  York City Police Department's parking enforcement

         20  and the Department of Transportation's Parking

         21  Control Unit, which enforces on-street violations

         22  and off-street violations found in municipal parking

         23  facilities.

         24                 In 1996, a local law transferred the

         25  employees from DOT Parking Control Unit to the NYPD.
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          2                 Intro. 350-A would transfer the

          3  remaining DOT personnel to the NYPD, therefore, and

          4  thereby creating one enforcement entity.

          5                 I want to thank our panel for being

          6  here today. Before I get to the panel, let me just

          7  do a couple of thank yous. I want to thank the

          8  Committee staff who had put this hearing together.

          9  To my right here is the Legal Counsel Howard Gates,

         10  our Policy Analyst Joan Povolny, Steve Adenesio, my

         11  Legislative Aide.

         12                 To my right here, Council Member Mike

         13  Nelson, my Committee member. I will introduce

         14  Committee members as they come along. I would also

         15  like to thank the Sergeant-At-Arms for helping us

         16  out today. And again, our first panel on Intro.

         17  350-A is Conan Freud, Deputy Commissioner for

         18  Administrative Services in the Department of

         19  Transportation, and with him is Deputy Commissioner

         20  Edward Allocco, Police Department, Deputy

         21  Commissioner Management and Budget.

         22                 And gentlemen, I appreciate your time

         23  and testimony today. And, please, give your

         24  testimony.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FREUD: Thank you
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          2  very much.

          3                 Good afternoon, Chairman Addabbo, and

          4  members of the Committee. I am Conan Freud, the

          5  Deputy Commissioner for Administrative Services at

          6  the New York City Department of Transportation, and

          7  with me here today is Edward Allocco, Deputy

          8  Commissioner for Management and Budget at the New

          9  York City Police Department.

         10                 Thank you for providing us this

         11  opportunity to state the Administration's support

         12  for Intro. 350-A, a bill that will effectuate the

         13  functional transfer of employees from the New York

         14  City Department of Transportation's Parking Control

         15  Unit for the New York City Police Department.

         16                 Intro. 350-A will amend the

         17  provisions added by Local Law 58 of 1996, which

         18  authorize the transfer to the NYPD of DOT employees

         19  who perform traffic enforcement functions.

         20                 This bill will transfer the existing

         21  DOT PCU employees, resulting in a centralized

         22  parking enforcement entity under the NYPD.

         23                 Currently, New York City Traffic

         24  Rules and Regulations and the New York State Vehicle

         25  Traffic Laws are enforced primarily through the
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          2  NYPD's Parking Enforcement District and its patrol

          3  officers, and to a lesser extent, by DOT's Parking

          4  Control Unit.

          5                 DOT's PCU unit currently enforces

          6  on-street violations and off-street violations found

          7  in municipal parking facilities.

          8                 NYPD issues summonses for traffic

          9  infractions, such as moving violations, and enforces

         10  on-street parking regulations.

         11                 The City would benefit from the

         12  functional transfer of DOT's PCU unit by creating

         13  one enforcement entity overseen by the NYPD.

         14                 This centralization will result in a

         15  more effective and efficient enforcement of parking

         16  laws and rules and will be a critical element in the

         17  City's efforts to increase traffic flow and reduce

         18  congestion throughout the City.

         19                 The centralization will also permit

         20  the NYPD to enhance the training, coordination and

         21  deployment of the summons enforcement personnel

         22  throughout the City.

         23                 Intro. 350 ensures that the

         24  transferred employees will retain their civil

         25  service classifications and status in according with
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          2  Civil Service Law.

          3                 I should also point out that we have

          4  been in communication with the effective unions on

          5  the proposed transfer, and shown them all drafts of

          6  the proposed legislation.

          7                 In conclusion, this bill will enable

          8  the creation of a centralized and more effective and

          9  efficient parking enforcement entity under the NYPD.

         10                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         11  testify before you today in support of this bill,

         12  and at this time we will be both happy to answer any

         13  questions that you have.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Well, again, I

         15  want to thank you very much for your time and

         16  testimony before I get to questions possibly from my

         17  colleagues. A couple of questions.

         18                 On the second page of your testimony,

         19  you mentioned that you had passed by and have

         20  communicated with the local affected unions and

         21  passed by them the draft. Do you know of any

         22  opposition at this point from anybody who is

         23  affected?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FREUD: None that

         25  we are aware of. You know, we've communicated with

                                                            8

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  it. Obviously the unions would not tell us what

          3  their position were, but we didn't hear any

          4  objections.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: How many

          6  employees are we talking being transferred from DOT

          7  to NYPD?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FREUD:

          9  Approximately at this time 75. Again, the final

         10  number will be determined, you know, there may be a

         11  retirement, a separation for the transfer. So,

         12  approximately 75.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And as Chair of

         14  the Labor Committee, again, as you may know, I am

         15  very interested obviously in the status. I was

         16  concerned as my discussions with the Administration

         17  on this intro, basically that their status would not

         18  change. And, again, I see it in your testimony.

         19  Again, I want to reemphasize and again make clear

         20  that we are certain that there will be no change in

         21  civil service status, no change in other status that

         22  you know of, correct?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FREUD: No change.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

         25                 At this point I have a question from
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          2  Council Member Mike Nelson.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Chair.

          5                 Good morning, or good afternoon, sir.

          6                 Your statement on page two, you're

          7  saying this would help increase traffic flow and

          8  reduce congestion throughout the City, could you

          9  expound on that?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FREUD: Well, I

         11  think it's our belief that right now we have two

         12  entities doing enforcement functions, and it may

         13  make sense to just have one doing it, to have sort

         14  of a clear sort of command of how transactions need

         15  to be engaged in, so we can move traffic better.

         16                 You know, we're not going to tell you

         17  today this is going to clean up the air of New York,

         18  but we hope this will be another small improvement

         19  that we make to make traffic flow a little better.

         20                 I don't know if the police have

         21  anything to add to that.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALLOCCO: I think

         23  basically --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I'm sorry, sir.

         25  Say your name for the record, please.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALLOCCO: Ed

          3  Allocco, Deputy Commissioner of Management and

          4  Budget, NYPD.

          5                 Consistent with what Commissioner

          6  Freud said, it doesn't make sense for us to have two

          7  separate entities performing the same function.

          8                 This is a relatively small group of

          9  parking control employees at this time that remained

         10  at DOT and it makes sense to us to have them

         11  transfer over. You know, this is similar logic to

         12  what has been done in the past at the NYPD where

         13  we've merged other units, like Housing Police and

         14  Transit Police into, you know, one cohesive group.

         15  And we can then, you know, we can train them equally

         16  and we have more flexibility in our deployment

         17  strategies, and we can do a better job basically at

         18  enforcing the traffic regulations.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes, because

         20  the idea in and of itself sounds very good.

         21                 DOT, TEU, we often wondered why, so

         22  this is in answer to that.

         23                 Will this transfer enable this new

         24  entity to issue moving violation summonses?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALLOCCO: My
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          2  understanding is they will continue to perform the

          3  same functions that they are currently performing in

          4  the same titles, so we're not looking to change what

          5  they do, it's just a matter of where they do it and

          6  who they report to that ultimately change. Same

          7  thing, you know, the titles, benefits, you know

          8  everything that they are currently experiencing,

          9  their rights would remain the same, just moving it

         10  over into our agency.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Same amount of

         12  vehicles, I suppose will be used, too, then?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALLOCCO: Yes, we

         14  put an order in.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Just paint the

         16  cars over?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALLOCCO: Well,

         18  actually we put an order in for new vehicles.

         19                 We've been working closely, my office

         20  and DOT, along with OMB, have been working closely

         21  on this proposed transfer for a number of months, to

         22  ensure that all of the necessary resources are in

         23  place to do this function in the NYPD as best as

         24  possible.

         25                 So, along those lines we've
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          2  identified a need for additional vehicles. We've

          3  transferred in the Executive Budget, monies are

          4  transferred from DOT to NYPD, and additional monies

          5  have been provided by OMB to enhance the operation.

          6                 So, we will be getting new vehicles.

          7  We will also be getting parking ticket device

          8  systems for the parking control specialists.

          9                 So, they will have those same

         10  hand-held devices that our traffic enforcement

         11  agents have.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: And once this

         13  is transacted, the transfer takes place,

         14  approximately once the law is enacted, how long do

         15  you think it would place to have it running?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FREUD: Well, once

         17  a law is enacted and we have the green light to go

         18  ahead, we would immediately begin the transfer

         19  process. We're looking at some training, 30 days,

         20  and we're looking at some training on our end once

         21  the specialists come over. We would have to work out

         22  assignments and locations, you know, where they

         23  would be based, and those logistics would be worked

         24  out at that point.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: So it might
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          2  cut down on the amount of violence also initiated

          3  against the agents.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALLOCCO: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: We hope so.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FREUD: I think

          7  considering the history of what happened when we did

          8  the transfer the first time, the large transfer, I

          9  think it did reduce -- I mean, Ed could --

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALLOCCO: I don't

         11  have statistics going back to what happened when

         12  TEAs were transferred over, but certainly, you know,

         13  becoming members of the NYPD, you know, has a

         14  certain connotation, and certainly they're part of

         15  the NYPD family upon that transfer and the uniformed

         16  members of that service, obviously support their

         17  efforts.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes, I see

         19  this is a positive addition to this process. Thank

         20  you.

         21                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

         23  Council Member Nelson.

         24                 And, you know, with this intro I can

         25  see, obviously, we are moving in an area of
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          2  efficiency. But if we can go back, if you have this

          3  information, if you can go back to 1996 to an extent

          4  when the local law then transferred the first set of

          5  DOT personnel to NYPD, how many were transferred at

          6  that time?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FREUD: I'm going

          8  to say about 2,000.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: 2,000 agents

         10  from DOT to NYPD.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FREUD: Right.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Why were then

         13  the 75 or so held back at that time?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FREUD: I think at

         15  that time there was a sort of a belief that we

         16  wanted to have a concentrated enforcement effort on

         17  parking issues, especially parking fields. And there

         18  was a belief that a way to protect the revenue in

         19  parking fields, and some of the on-street parking

         20  would be to have a concentrated effort.

         21                 We have had, you know, we've done

         22  that for ten years and, you know, we think we've

         23  seen what NYPD can do, and we don't see that we

         24  really need that effort, and it's from DOT's

         25  perspective, you know, it's better to put our
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          2  managerial resources into things that we're better

          3  at, things like repairing the plants, and expanding

          4  the plant, and trying to enforce the law, which is,

          5  that's what the police are for, and they're better

          6  trained, and they can coordinate a lot better than

          7  we can do, and I think the police would agree.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: My guess is over

          9  the past ten years, since the first transfer of

         10  1996, you have looked at the previous 2,000 or so

         11  personnel that was transferred from DOT, and you

         12  looked at their track record, I'm guessing as when

         13  thinking about this Intro, you looked at how the

         14  transfer went back over the last ten years, and

         15  figured then it would be appropriate to do the next

         16  75, correct?

         17                 I like to be slightly ahead of the

         18  curve, and in thinking about all of the possible

         19  issues that may come up, do you foresee with this

         20  transfer of 75 any issues that may come up? If this

         21  Intro should pass, do you see any possible issue

         22  that we may have to work on or address in the near

         23  future?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FREUD: You know,

         25  when you have 75 people moving from one organization
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          2  to another, you know, you may have one or two people

          3  who have an issue. I'm not going to say that

          4  individuals might not, but an organization, it makes

          5  sense for both our organizations, for both our

          6  agencies to do this transfer.

          7                 And I think the employees affected

          8  are not going to have any diminishment of their

          9  benefits, and it gives them an opportunity to join a

         10  new organization, coming from DOT to NYPD, that will

         11  give them some more advancements.

         12                 In DOT, frankly, we only had 75. You

         13  know, there's 100 budgeted positions, 75 live

         14  bodies, 99 budgeted positions I think, there was

         15  only a certain amount of opportunity.

         16                 NYPD, there will be more opportunity

         17  for people, promotional advancements, for different

         18  assignments that they want to have.

         19                 So, from a labor relations, labor

         20  human resource management perspective, I think it's

         21  a good move.

         22                 You know, could there be an

         23  individual who may have an issue? I'm not going to

         24  say that there couldn't be. We think from an

         25  organizational perspective it will be a good move
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          2  for everyone.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I'm sure we

          4  looked at both the cost analysis and maybe even the

          5  revenue analysis of what an intro like this would

          6  mean, and what this transfer might mean, so let's,

          7  you know, if we can touch upon each for a second. We

          8  have an idea -- would this increase revenue for the

          9  City in terms of violations being issued, or

         10  practically remain the same, just shifting of

         11  personnel?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALLOCCO: Well,

         13  based on our modeling and our averages, we

         14  anticipate that the transfer would result in

         15  increased revenue for the NYPD, the NYPD generated,

         16  of $21.7 million gross revenue, and 16.1 million

         17  dollars net revenue. And the net revenue is less the

         18  cost of personnel and the OTPS.

         19                 I'm not sure what the revenue

         20  assumptions were for DOT, but based on our modeling

         21  and our deployment plan, that's what we anticipate.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So, a net of

         23  16.1 million. Do we see a savings? Because obviously

         24  we can talk about revenue to an extent also about

         25  savings to the City; is there a cost savings in this
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          2  transfer at all or not?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FREUD: No. We're

          4  transferring basically the salaries of -- DOT's

          5  budget went down, their budget went up, on the

          6  expense side, that's sort of what happened.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Now let's talk

          8  about the cost to an extent, and, again, it may be

          9  minimal, if anything. But is there a cost to the

         10  City for this transfer?

         11                 I know you had mentioned ordering new

         12  cars, new vehicles, is there a price tag attached to

         13  this intro?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALLOCCO: Aside

         15  from the salaries, the OTPS amount reflected in our

         16  FY '07 budget is $1.6 million, and then going

         17  forward in FY '08 and outyears, it's $167,000.

         18                 The FY '07 amount is obviously

         19  significantly higher than the ongoing cost, and

         20  that's so that we can buy all new vehicles. We want

         21  to get the parking ticket device system so they can

         22  all be, all the parking control specialists can be

         23  equipped with them. And other miscellaneous

         24  purchases, you know, new radios, maintenance costs

         25  we're going to have to pick up on the new vehicles,
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          2  and general operating costs.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I appreciate

          4  those numbers, in relation to that answer then, I'm

          5  noticing the last section of the Intro says that the

          6  local law shall take effect July 2nd this year,

          7  2006, or as soon as practical. Considering that

          8  obviously the intent here is to do it as soon as

          9  possible, what would be the turn-around time if

         10  we're talking about an upgrade for improvement in

         11  equipment, radios, purchasing of vehicles, what

         12  would be a practical turn-around time if this was,

         13  you know, adopted within the next month or so?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALLOCCO: Well, we

         15  think we can get most of the vehicles and equipment

         16  in the early part of the next fiscal year, around

         17  July and August. But, you know, it doesn't have to

         18  match exactly, the transfer of the personnel with

         19  the receipt of the vehicles and the equipment,

         20  because we have other vehicles, you know, we have

         21  other equipment. There's over 2,600 Traffic

         22  Enforcement Agents in the Department right now that

         23  are properly equipped. We do have some reserves in

         24  terms of vehicles and equipment, that we'll get it

         25  up and running and then we'll add that equipment and
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          2  those vehicles as soon as they come in.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So,

          4  Commissioner, just so that I'm clear, once this is

          5  adopted, then obviously the personnel can get out

          6  there, the 75 or so that are transferred can get out

          7  there, do their new roles so to speak, and the

          8  equipment and everything else can follow again July

          9  or August, correct?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALLOCCO: I

         11  anticipate that the timing will be fairly close.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

         13                 Any other questions?

         14                 I want to thank you both for your

         15  time and testimony, and look forward to working with

         16  you on this Intro.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FREUD: Thank you

         18  very much.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALLOCCO: Thank

         20  you. Appreciate it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 There are no other witnesses on this

         24  Intro., so, again, since this is the first oversight

         25  hearing on this introduction, the Committee
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          2  obviously will then go for a vote at our next

          3  meeting, and hopefully that is before the summer

          4  break. We will do our best, but we look forward to

          5  keeping in contact with you. Thank you.

          6                 Part two of today's hearing is a

          7  resolution. Resolution 334. And at this point I just

          8  want to welcome and introduce for the first time at

          9  our hearing today the Mayor's liaison to our

         10  hearing, Katie Hart. Katie, thank you very much for

         11  being here. It is your first hearing, so don't want

         12  to embarrass you too much.

         13                 The second portion of today's hearing

         14  is Reso 334, a Resolution calling upon the New York

         15  State Legislature to pass Senate Bill 5456-A and

         16  Assembly Bill 8420-A, also known as the Employees

         17  Mail Order Pharmacy Bill of rights, which is

         18  legislation which prohibit health insurance policy

         19  from imposing an additional fee or co-pay

         20  requirement on any employee or insured person who

         21  likes to purchase prescribed drugs from a pharmacy

         22  who are not a mail order service.

         23                 The escalating cost of prescription

         24  drugs have created an enormous challenge to

         25  individual consumers, labor organizations,

                                                            22

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  governments, and local retailers.

          3                 In an attempt to save costs, most

          4  prescription benefit plans use Pharmacy Benefit

          5  Managers or PBMs, which essentially act as middlemen

          6  between the drug manufacturers and their clients.

          7                 On April 25th of this year, this

          8  Committee held a hearing on the mandatory mail order

          9  prescription drug programs, and the negative impacts

         10  they have on the New York City workers and economy.

         11                 Some of the concerns raised included

         12  the lack of choice between mail order and getting

         13  the prescription drug from a local pharmacy, and

         14  unfair financial burdens being placed on consumers

         15  who choose not to use the mail order drug services.

         16                 Reso 334 supports the State

         17  Legislation that would preserve the choice of

         18  certain consumers with respect to purchasing

         19  prescribed prescription drugs and save millions of

         20  taxpayer dollars from leaving New York City and New

         21  York State, as a result of negative impacts mail

         22  order has had on our local pharmacies.

         23                 I'd like to call up our first panel

         24  for this hearing.

         25                 I would like to call up Stewart Rahr,
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          2  from KINRAY and Ray Macioli from New York City

          3  Pharmacists Society.

          4                 Gentlemen, thank you for being here

          5  today. Please state your name for the record and

          6  give your testimony.

          7                 MR. MACIOCI: My name is Raymond

          8  Macioci.

          9                 Chairman Addabbo, Councilman Nelson,

         10  my name is Raymond Macioci, and for 30 years I've

         11  been Supervising Pharmacist and owner of Pilgram

         12  Pharmacy in the Pelham Bay section of the Bronx.

         13                 On behalf of the New York City

         14  Pharmacists Society, representing over 1,000

         15  independent pharmacies in the City, I encourage you

         16  to pass this resolution, calling upon the State

         17  Legislature to pass the Employees' Mail Order

         18  Pharmacy Bill of Rights.

         19                 As stated in the whereases of the

         20  resolution, it is essential for this proposed

         21  legislation to pass for many reasons.

         22                 Among them are, one, it will provide

         23  for freedom of choice for patients to use the

         24  pharmacists of their own choosing. Allowing those

         25  pharmacists to provide service that mail order
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          2  pharmacies would never be able to match.

          3                 Two, it will break the stranglehold

          4  that PBMs have on the hundreds of millions of

          5  dollars of business, which now goes out of State, to

          6  the mail order firms, which pharmacies operate out

          7  of the jurisdiction of the State of New York, the

          8  New York State Board of Pharmacy, and other

          9  regulatory authorities.

         10                 Phrases that sprinkle throughout this

         11  resolution summarize the issue quite well, and these

         12  are quotes from the resolution:

         13                 Mail order prices are actually

         14  higher.

         15                 Mandatory mail order plans remove an

         16  essential component of health care, the pharmacist.

         17                 Pharmacists have knowledge of a

         18  patient's medical history. Negative drug

         19  interactions are avoided, and pharmacists can

         20  provide face-to-face consultations with patients.

         21                 The Employees Mail Order Bill Of

         22  Rights would preserve choice.

         23                 Please help preserve the rights of

         24  patients and also to preserve the enduring part of

         25  the City's landscape, the independent community
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          2  pharmacy. We ask you to pass this resolution.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 MR. RARH: Stewart Rahr, KINRAY. Good

          5  afternoon, Chairman Addabbo and Council members.

          6  Thank you for inviting me to be here. I've always

          7  believed that to be a good public servant, one does

          8  not need to be a democrat or a republican, what one

          9  needs to be is hard-working, bright, caring and

         10  energetic, and Chairman Addabbo, you have been

         11  praised for those qualities, and that is high praise

         12  indeed.

         13                 I am the sole owner and CEO of

         14  KINRAY. While KINRAY may be a company you've never

         15  heard of before, it has been in existence in the

         16  Borough of Queens for over 50 years. Our current

         17  revenues are approaching $4 billion.

         18                 KINRAY employs over 1,000 people, all

         19  of them residents of New York State.

         20                 Chairman Addabbo, you have taken the

         21  time to learn about the devastating affect of the

         22  PBM, and I appreciate that.

         23                 The PBMs are also hurting KINRAY's

         24  business. We're in the business of supplying

         25  independent pharmacies. KINRAY, unlike most other
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          2  major distributors, has never ever serviced mail

          3  order pharmacies or PBMs.

          4                 The PBMs are choking off the

          5  Independent Pharmacies by mandating that all

          6  prescription drugs be obtained only through the mail

          7  order.

          8                 Rather than talking more about how

          9  the PBMs are threatening the jobs of KINRAY's 1,000

         10  New York employees, threatening the well-being of

         11  those 1,000 families of those employees, and harming

         12  numerous local businesses that furnish goods and

         13  services to KINRAY, and destroying the thousands of

         14  independent pharmacies in New York, and endangering

         15  the tens of thousands of people that they employ, I

         16  instead want to talk very briefly about something

         17  more important. I want to talk to you about the good

         18  advice and the good health care that is offered by

         19  the neighborhood pharmacist.

         20                 For most New York citizens, the front

         21  lines of health care service are not the hospitals,

         22  the front lines are not the doctors' offices. For

         23  most New Yorkers, the front lines are the

         24  pharmacist, the neighborhood pharmacist. Each and

         25  every day, 100 times more people visit their
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          2  neighborhood pharmacy than visit a hospital or a

          3  doctor.

          4                 Professional pharmacists are not, of

          5  course, in the business of giving medical advice.

          6  But they are in the business of knowing their

          7  customers, of treating them like patients.

          8                 Professional pharmacists make it

          9  their business to ensure that those patients get

         10  their correct medications in the correct doses.

         11                 Professional pharmacists take care to

         12  inform that those patients know how to store these

         13  medications. They take care that those patients know

         14  what to do with these medications and how to take

         15  them and how often.

         16                 They care to watch for any adverse or

         17  unexpected reactions caused by these products.

         18                 These are not easy tasks. Many of

         19  those patients are elderly or disabled or

         20  chronically ill. Each week I hear many accounts of

         21  how patients who are required to use mail order

         22  often have difficulty placing orders or receiving

         23  their shipments.

         24                 I hear accounts of how

         25  pharmaceuticals are mishandled, damaged or lost. All
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          2  of these patients are not simply inconvenienced or

          3  harmed, they are deprived of the right to maintain a

          4  relationship with their neighborhood pharmacist, the

          5  pharmacist they have known for years and has perhaps

          6  guided and counseled a particular family from one

          7  generation to the next.

          8                 If you allow the PBMs to drive the

          9  neighborhood pharmacist about of business, even that

         10  vital personal care may soon disappear.

         11                 So, Chairman Addabbo, thank you for

         12  your powerful resolution that would announce the New

         13  York City Council's strong determination to stop

         14  these unethical practices with their economical

         15  constraints, and thank you for speaking up for the

         16  American way, that is freedom to choose, or freedom

         17  of choice for all Americans.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         20  much, gentlemen. And we do have a number of

         21  questions, first from Council Member Mike Nelson.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chair.

         24                 Welcome, Mr. Macioci and Mr. Rahr.

         25                 Are community pharmacies able to
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          2  provide the same cost benefits as the mail orders?

          3                 MR. MACIOCI: Actually, part of the

          4  initial hearing that we had a few, oh, about two

          5  months ago, there was a representative from the

          6  University of --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Creiden.

          8                 MR. MACIOCI: Creiden University

          9  (phonetic), I'm sorry, providing statistical

         10  information showing that mail order actually costs

         11  more than using the community pharmacy, and that's

         12  using a very broad study.  The problem that we have

         13  is making clarity of it without going into the

         14  minute details, and this gentleman did, and he

         15  explained it very clearly.

         16                 Your question has to do with

         17  comparing mail order to community pharmacy?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Sure,

         19  advantages to the consumer, as far as economically?

         20                 MR. RAHR: Well, DC 37.

         21                 MR. MACIOCI: If you take as an

         22  example District Council 37 which formerly forced

         23  people to use mail order for maintenance medication,

         24  as of July 1st of this year, is going to allow them

         25  not to do it. Mandatory mail order proved to be not
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          2  a saving in dollars and cents for them and not for

          3  the consumer.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: And this could

          5  be a loss of City and State tax revenue, too, in

          6  that Chicago, Texas, or the States would be doing

          7  this and eliminating New York's tax process.

          8                 MR. RAHR: No income coming into the

          9  State whatsoever.

         10                 MR. MACIOCI: All these mail order

         11  firms are out of State. And as I testified, they are

         12  out of the control of the State Board of Pharmacy

         13  and other regulatory agencies.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: And in many

         15  cases is additional cost, in a co-pay or what have

         16  you, to a consumer if they wanted to purchase their

         17  drugs through a neighborhood pharmacy?

         18                 MR. RAHR: Hardship. The differential.

         19                 MR. MACIOCI: There is a differential,

         20  and the differential is put there by the PBMs.

         21                 PBMs set up the whole program with

         22  the sponsors, and there is a disincentive in many

         23  cases, because the PBMs make more based on rebates

         24  that they get from manufacturers. So, they are going

         25  to disincentivise the patient from going to the
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          2  neighborhood pharmacy, because they want to draw

          3  those prescriptions in because the more

          4  prescriptions they fill, the higher rebate money

          5  they get from manufacturers.

          6                 That's another problem in the larger

          7  scope, because when the drug companies have to pay

          8  rebate money, what are they going to do? They're

          9  going to raise the cost of the drugs. So, that's a

         10  self-perpetuating system, increasing the cost of

         11  health care.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: So, these are

         13  multifaceted problems that face the consumer that

         14  needs drugs.

         15                 And have there been reported cases of

         16  the mail not delivering their drugs?

         17                 MR. MACIOCI: Especially in areas

         18  where -- well, take a 20-story building with broken

         19  doorbells and mailboxes that don't accommodate what

         20  needs to be fit in.

         21                 We hear it every day at the pharmacy

         22  counter. People who come in and tell us that they

         23  didn't get their delivery from the mail order

         24  company.

         25                 There was a problem with the

                                                            32

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  prescription, it was mailed back to them for some

          3  clerical difficulty. If it was done in a pharmacy,

          4  that clerical difficulty can be taken care of with a

          5  phone call. That doesn't happen. There are just so

          6  many things that happen. Damage. Damages, lost in

          7  the mail.

          8                 MR. RAHR: On conditions where they're

          9  frozen goods and they need to be kept that way.

         10                 People testified here a couple of

         11  months ago under that terrible condition. The

         12  medicine is useless by the time it arrives for them.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: And medication

         14  usually has to be taken, it's taken on a timely

         15  basis.

         16                 MR. MACIOCI: Exactly. Especially in

         17  situations where you're talking about high blood

         18  pressure medication, asthma medication, New York

         19  City unfortunately has some of the highest asthma

         20  rates in the country, and a lot of these PBMs

         21  mandate that the asthma medication, which are

         22  considered maintenance medications, be obtained

         23  through mandatory mail order.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: And the

         25  consumer would have to, or patient would have to
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          2  scramble if they did not receive their medication on

          3  time. They would have to go to a pharmacy, the big

          4  ones, CVS, Rite-Aid or their neighborhood pharmacy,

          5  and what would they be faced with then?

          6                 MR. MACIOCI: They would be faced

          7  with, in most cases, having to pay for the

          8  medication, first off.

          9                 First they would come into the

         10  pharmacy. The pharmacist must have the prescription

         11  on file. If it's been mailed to the mail order

         12  company, that doesn't exist.

         13                 We take the necessary steps to make

         14  sure that people get their medication. But in many

         15  cases, the PBMs will not cover that medication,

         16  forcing the patient to pay out of pocket.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: It appears to

         18  us to a degree we're talking about choice here too.

         19  If somebody wants to order by mail, well, let them.

         20                 MR. MACIOCI: Our objective is not to

         21  disassemble mail order pharmacy. Our objective is to

         22  stop mandatory mail order.

         23                 I mean, we can compete on every

         24  level. The independent pharmacies of New York City

         25  have shown, there's 1,000 of us, we can still
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          2  compete with any of the chains that are around.

          3  We're still around. But when the game is tilted so

          4  strongly towards a mandatory taking the business out

          5  of our stores and out of New York State, that's when

          6  we're at a disadvantage.

          7                 MR. RAHR: And the co-pay.

          8                 MR. MACIOCI: And the co-pays.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: And it could

         10  be an embarrassing situation at times, too, if you

         11  prefer to have, let's say you're taking Thorazine or

         12  something else, you don't particularly want people

         13  to know, or Valium or whatever the heck it is, and

         14  sometimes it could be opened.

         15                 MR. MACIOCI: Privacy is a paramount

         16  issue as far as the practice of pharmacy is

         17  concerned. That's part of what we do, keeping your

         18  business your business.

         19                 And the other issue is that when you

         20  fill your prescriptions in one pharmacy, we have all

         21  your records. If we go to fill a prescription for a

         22  patient who has medications obtained through

         23  mandatory mail order, we have no idea what that

         24  patient has been taking. So, the danger of drug

         25  interaction, based on the patient not recalling the
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          2  name of the medication they're taking, which does

          3  happen, and then they bring us a prescription, we

          4  have no way of cross-checking with what they're

          5  taking.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: The personal

          7  touch seems to be missing.

          8                 MR. MACIOCI: Totally vacant.

          9  Absolutely.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: It used to be

         11  doc, you go to see your pharmacist, he knew you, he

         12  knew what you needed.

         13                 MR. RAHR: Exactly.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: And there

         15  would still be the situation like -- so, again, I

         16  think choice is important.

         17                 MR. MACIOCI: Absolutely.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Well, thank

         19  you. And thank you, Mr. Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         21  much, Council Member Nelson.

         22                 We have been joined by Council Member

         23  Melissa Mark-Viverito. Thank you very much for being

         24  here.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 And before we get to further

          3  questions from my colleagues, just a couple of items

          4  I want to clarify.

          5                 Since the increase in mail order

          6  prescription drugs, obviously the high cost of

          7  prescription drugs and this need for it, trying to

          8  reduce cost; have you seen, you've been in the

          9  business for a number of years, I'm sure, okay, have

         10  you seen a reduction in business? And if so, what

         11  has that meant? Has that meant, obviously it could

         12  have been a reduction in employees, laying off

         13  people? Or, you know, what does it mean, this

         14  reduction in business to you?

         15                 MR. MACIOCI: Well, it means

         16  shortening hours. If not laying off people, then not

         17  hiring people that you normally would have hired.

         18  You're stretching everything as much as you can.

         19                 The unfortunate thing is that its a

         20  misconception that mandatory mail order saves the

         21  sponsor money. It's a misconception, and it's a very

         22  difficult one to prove. It's the same type of

         23  misconception that people may have regarding small

         24  independent pharmacies being more expensive than the

         25  chain pharmacies when as it's been proven, in a
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          2  study done by Senator Jeff Klein, that it's not

          3  true. In fact, it was pretty much across the board

          4  shown that the independents were less expensive.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And it's safe to

          6  say that with this reduction of business, there has

          7  been an increase, on the other side, of complaints

          8  from your consumers?

          9                 MR. MACIOCI: There is not one day

         10  that goes by that I or other pharmacists are not

         11  confronted with patients coming in, complaining

         12  about their situation. I have been thinking about

         13  putting a tape recorder at the counter, just taping

         14  these people and their complaints and their

         15  legitimate complaints. When you have your child

         16  needing asthma medication and the medication doesn't

         17  arrive on time or doesn't arrive at all, that's a

         18  big problem.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: It should be

         20  noted that at that April 25th hearing that we had

         21  here, this Civil Service and Labor Committee

         22  hearing, it was expressed most explicitly that there

         23  is, you know, a competitive pricing that can be had

         24  between the local pharmacy and the mandatory mail

         25  order that really there is no severe cost savings in
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          2  these mail order prescription drug companies, again,

          3  mail order prescription drugs. Therefore, to go back

          4  to the point that mail order prescription drugs and

          5  the use of the pharmacies can coexist. So, when we

          6  say there should be a choice, that's a factual

          7  statement, right?

          8                 MR. MACIOCI: Choice is part of

          9  competition.

         10                 MR. RAHR: Right.

         11                 MR. MACIOCI: And the two of them

         12  coexist and we could coexist with any entity,

         13  whether it be chain, mail order, you name it, as

         14  long as the playing field is level.

         15                 So, when we ask the State Legislature

         16  to pass these two bills, do you see this as more of

         17  a way to protect the businesses of the local

         18  pharmacies, and it's geared toward a favoring, the

         19  local pharmacies or that industry? Or do you see

         20  it's more of a promoting of choice?

         21                 MR. MACIOCI: Actually, it's for the

         22  patient. The primary, what we do for a living is

         23  take care of people. Our job is to make sure that

         24  the prescriptions wind up in the hands of the people

         25  and the information that's necessary for them to use
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          2  those prescriptions is given to them. That's our

          3  job. So, it's a situation that we're talking about

          4  giving these people choice as to how they want to

          5  get their prescriptions.

          6                 I'm sorry, just one last thing. And

          7  it may seem self-serving, but, actually, it's more

          8  for fairness in the business environment, and that's

          9  what we need, like I said, a level playing field and

         10  a fair environment.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I will tell

         12  everyone here that it was the focus of this

         13  Committee and myself as Chair, that what we want to

         14  do is give what's best for our City workforce. I

         15  heard a number of complaints that, again, they are

         16  locked in or forced to mail away when they cannot

         17  have the choice of going to their local pharmacy,

         18  and I think this country was built on choice. I

         19  think that's the bottom line.

         20                 So, being an advocate for this reso

         21  and ultimately the State Legislature, that I would

         22  like to have passed, is not for the sake of

         23  targeting a particular industry and favoring a

         24  particular person, to my knowledge, I have no family

         25  members in the pharmacy industry that I'm really
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          2  going to help out here, the bottom line is our City

          3  workforce and the residents of this City, who I

          4  would love for them to have a choice. Let them make

          5  the decision whether if they like the mail order,

          6  fine, let them mail away, if they like going down to

          7  their local pharmacy, like I do, the bottom line is

          8  they should have that choice. And that's the premise

          9  that I go on with this resolution, and I appreciate

         10  your point of view in the same aspect.

         11                 MR. RAHR: It's the same point of

         12  view. We feel the same way.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you. Okay.

         14                 MR. RAHR: Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         16  much, gentlemen. Thank you for your time and

         17  testimony.

         18                 The last two individuals who have

         19  signed up today to speak on Reso 334, are Arthur

         20  Pepper from the UFT, United Federation of Teachers;

         21  and Audrey Browne, Director of Regulatory Compliance

         22  and Contract Procurement from DC 37. Do you want to

         23  step forward?

         24                 Thank you both for being here today,

         25  if you could just please state your name and give

                                                            41

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  your testimony.

          3                 MR. PEPPER: My name is Arthur Pepper,

          4  I'm the Executive Director of the United Federation

          5  of Teachers Welfare Fund.

          6                 And good afternoon, Chairman Addabbo,

          7  and members of the City Council Civil Service and

          8  Labor Committee.

          9                 As I said, I am the Executive

         10  Director of the Welfare Fund of the United

         11  Federation of Teachers, and I welcome the

         12  opportunity to discuss the Employees' Mail Order

         13  Pharmacy Bill of Rights.

         14                 I'm here representing the UFT to

         15  speak in opposition to this legislation.

         16                 It's important for you to understand

         17  that my comments are derived from my practical

         18  knowledge. As the Executive Direct of the UFT

         19  Welfare Fund, which provides benefits to more than

         20  150,000 members and their dependents, I administer a

         21  drug plan that provides approximately 1 million

         22  prescriptions annually.

         23                 I believe that parts of the

         24  legislation in question are misleading, but to put

         25  my comments in context, let me first explain what
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          2  our plan looks like.

          3                 The UFT Welfare Fund does not mandate

          4  ordering by mail order except for a portion of our

          5  members in our Cost Care Program. But mail order is

          6  available for those who use maintenance drugs and

          7  those drugs that are taken over a consistent ongoing

          8  period of time.

          9                 Approximately two years ago, I began

         10  a project with the help of our prescription benefit

         11  manager to create a local maintenance network. This

         12  would allow our members who don't want to receive

         13  their maintenance drug 90-day supply through the

         14  mail to go to a local pharmacy in this retail

         15  maintenance network.

         16                 There is an additional $10 for brand

         17  maintenance drugs, but there is no additional charge

         18  for generic drugs.

         19                 I am aware of the position of the

         20  pharmacists society and I understand its desire to

         21  have members shop locally.

         22                 For the past few years I have

         23  received letters from members who were asked by

         24  their pharmacy to support the dispensing of drugs

         25  locally as opposed to mail order.
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          2                 As you are aware, the pharmacy

          3  cultures changed to a general store model. We all

          4  are faced when entering our pharmacies with rows of

          5  beach chairs, electric appliances, milk, juice and

          6  groceries, and then finally, in the back of the

          7  store is the pharmaceutical items.

          8                 The walk-in trade is what the

          9  pharmacy relies on for sales and profit. So, let me

         10  share with you what I faced when trying to put

         11  together this local network that would bring the

         12  mail order business back into the local pharmacy.

         13                 The mom and pop pharmacies, as a

         14  matter of fact, Pilgram Pharmacy is one of ours on

         15  our network, the mom and pop pharmacies were very

         16  happy to join this new network. The large chains

         17  were very reluctant.

         18                 One vice president of a well-known

         19  chain called me and said he could not accept the

         20  discounts necessary to be in the network.

         21                 I explained to him that if our

         22  members walked in with two prescriptions, one for an

         23  acute illness drug, such as an antibiotic, and the

         24  other for a maintenance drug such as an

         25  antihistamine, and they were told that you cannot
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          2  dispense the second one, the maintenance drug to our

          3  members, our members would take back both

          4  prescriptions and go down the road to the

          5  competition. This would defeat your effort to

          6  increase the walk-in trade.

          7                 He was adamant. Refused to come on

          8  the network, and I told him I respected his business

          9  decision.

         10                 Two months later, as he saw the loss

         11  of business, he called and apologized for his

         12  original position and asked to be allowed to join

         13  the new retail maintenance network. So there was his

         14  initial resistance because they were shortsighted

         15  about the source of their profits.

         16                 Now, let me comment on the

         17  inaccuracies included in the proposed legislation,

         18  which revolve around the safety and accessibility

         19  issues.

         20                 The language in this legislation

         21  speaks to the fact that the local pharmacist often

         22  has knowledge of a patient's medical history and is

         23  better able to ensure that negative drug

         24  interactions are avoided.

         25                 This is not exactly true for two
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          2  reasons:

          3                 First, if a person goes to his or her

          4  regular local pharmacy chain A, and the pharmacy is

          5  currently out of the medication, which does occur,

          6  and then goes down the street to a different

          7  pharmacy, chain B, there is no connection whatsoever

          8  to this person's drug history.

          9                 Each pharmacy chain has its own

         10  proprietary systems, so there is no way of linking

         11  the information. So, in fact, the other pharmacy has

         12  no idea what drug, drugs, the patient is taking.

         13                 Second, in contrast, when a person

         14  goes either through one of our network retail

         15  pharmacies or the mail order pharmacy, the PBM

         16  software Canon does identify all prescription drugs

         17  the patient is taking. The PBM software programs can

         18  and do identify any negative drug interactions

         19  within seconds.

         20                 It is important to note that with all

         21  of the plans that I know, the first few

         22  prescriptions are dispensed at the local pharmacy.

         23  So, the ability to share concerns with the local

         24  pharmacist is available.

         25                 I believe there are studies that show
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          2  that errors in dispensing are greater at the local

          3  pharmacy, and that reality is just common sense.

          4  Anyone who visits a local pharmacy can observe the

          5  pharmacist multi-tasking, taking phone calls,

          6  answering customer's questions, offer other

          7  assistance to customers, all while dispensing

          8  medications. This is an obvious problem.

          9                 At the PBM mail service the

         10  pharmacists are concentrating on one task, and that

         11  is dispensing the medication properly.

         12                 I don't know how many customers

         13  actually speak to the pharmacist, but in my

         14  experience, it is usually clerks who complete the

         15  transaction and ask you whether you have any

         16  questions.

         17                 At our PBM there is a 24-hour

         18  pharmacist available for emergency consultation.

         19                 The proposed legislation does not

         20  take into account the total financial picture that a

         21  sponsor like our fund must consider.

         22                 There is no way that a local pharmacy

         23  can offer rebates or pricing to a plan as is done by

         24  a PBM.

         25                 The bulk purchasing power of the PBM
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          2  allows the flexibility which results in substantial

          3  savings, not only for the plan, but ultimately for

          4  the members.

          5                 If this legislation were to move

          6  forward, I am convinced that this would undoubtedly

          7  result in higher co-pays for our members.

          8                 We take pride in the program that we

          9  offer UFT members and their families. In doing so,

         10  we spend much time and energy in keeping

         11  prescription drugs affordable and accessible for

         12  them. Our Fund employees a full-time pharmacist and

         13  an assistant who resolve members' problems on a

         14  daily basis. We can from our office electronically

         15  correct a problem our member is having at any

         16  pharmacy in the United States. If we had a member at

         17  a pharmacy in Alaska call us, within seconds we

         18  could open a record and allow that member to get

         19  their prescription needs right at that pharmacy at

         20  that time.

         21                 All this comes to the PBM software,

         22  which as I said, allows us to see all drug history,

         23  both retail and mail.

         24                 Finally, it should be evident that

         25  having both local, retail and mail order options is
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          2  possible. We are doing exactly that already at the

          3  UFT. However, the choice must be left to the plan

          4  sponsors to create the best plan design within the

          5  financial framework available to the constituents.

          6                 While the Legislature's proposed

          7  legislation is intended to protect the business

          8  interests of the independent pharmacist throughout

          9  New York, an objective which we have no quarrel

         10  whatsoever, it does not, however, protect the

         11  interest of consumers, and that, we believe, is a

         12  major failing.

         13                 Consumers must always be free to

         14  purchase drugs from whatever source offers them the

         15  best price. Moreover, the proposed legislation

         16  interferes with statutory rights of unions,

         17  employers, and countless other groups and have

         18  bargained for design benefit plans that best suit

         19  the needs of their respective constituents.

         20                 Such legislation might very well

         21  conflict with federal law, and would be found

         22  unlawful under State and local laws.

         23                 For all these reasons, we urge the

         24  City Council to defeat resolution number 334.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Ms. Browne.

          3                 MS. BROWNE: Good afternoon. I hadn't

          4  planned to speak today, but I had to come up and

          5  address some of the misinformation that was given by

          6  the first set of speakers.

          7                 For the record, my name is Audrey

          8  Browne. I'm Director of Regulatory Compliance and

          9  Contract Procurement for District Council 37 Health

         10  and Security Plan.

         11                 DC 37, as many of you know, recently

         12  went through an RFP process to pick a new PBM. It

         13  was a very involved, extensive and complicated

         14  process.

         15                 We did chose a new PBM, and we chose

         16  one that offered greater transparency than our

         17  current PBM.

         18                 We also made a few changes in our

         19  plan design, but we did not, as was indicated

         20  earlier, by the gentleman representing the New York

         21  State Pharmacy Society, we didn't choose to

         22  eliminate mandatory mail order because it costs us

         23  more money.

         24                 Our record with mandatory mail was

         25  that it did save us money. In fact, we still have a
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          2  mail order part of our plan with our new PBM,

          3  because that will save us even more money.

          4                 The real issue here, and what ought

          5  to be looked at, is not eliminating mandatory mail,

          6  what this body and other legislators should be doing

          7  is looking at creating legislation that requires

          8  greater transparencies of the PBMs, that allows

          9  benefit plans like ours to see where they derive

         10  their profits.

         11                 The State of Maine, for example,

         12  passed some legislation recently requiring that any

         13  PBM doing business in the State of New York or in

         14  the State of Maine, have full transparency and

         15  provide full audit rights to any entity that does

         16  business with them, that legislation was challenged

         17  in the Federal Court, it was upheld at the District

         18  Court level, they went to the First Circuit Court of

         19  Appeals, it was upheld there. It then went to the

         20  Supreme Court, the Supreme Court refused to grant

         21  cert on the case.

         22                 So, we know that legislation that

         23  really protects consumers is what's needed, not this

         24  subterfuge, which is really aimed at protecting the

         25  business interests of a select few. We have no
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          2  quarrel whatsoever with the independent pharmacists.

          3  We've met with them, we've talked to them, we'd love

          4  to give them our business, but the one important

          5  overriding consideration that has to be recognized

          6  is that any trustee of any benefit plan is required

          7  to exercise his or her fiduciary duty to get the

          8  best deal they can for their constituents. And

          9  that's what our trustees did.

         10                 When we had complaints, and I just

         11  want to go on record, of any of our members who had

         12  a problem with mail order, we had a system in place

         13  where that could be dealt with immediately.

         14                 Our drug team could override any

         15  problems a member had at the moment they called.

         16  Both our outgoing PBM and our new one that's coming

         17  on July, have a pharmacist on staff 24 hours a day,

         18  seven days a week, to answer any questions a member

         19  may have.

         20                 So all of their rights as consumers

         21  are being protected by the systems we have in place.

         22  But I think what I find most disturbing on behalf of

         23  our plan, and I'm sure Artie shares my sentiment on

         24  this is, we have an obligation in this day and age

         25  where drugs are going up at three times the rate of
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          2  any other part of this economy, we have an

          3  obligation to make our dollars last as long as they

          4  could, and that's what we're doing.

          5                 We would love to send our business to

          6  the independents, if they could match the pricing

          7  we're getting from the big chains or from mail

          8  order. We would love to send them our business, but

          9  we have to make our money go as far as it can.

         10                 So, other than that, I just wanted to

         11  go on record to make it clear that we didn't

         12  eliminate mandatory mail because it was costing us

         13  more money, we did it to give our members, the few

         14  that had difficulty with it, some choice.

         15                 We hope our members stay with mail

         16  order, because we know it saves us money and by and

         17  large a vast majority of our membership is happy

         18  with mail order.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I want to thank

         20  you both for being here today. We do have a couple

         21  of questions. I'm going to just start by saying, I

         22  really appreciate both your input and the DC 37

         23  statement will be made part of the record, in

         24  essence, we're really all saying the same thing.

         25  You're really, you know, in my opinion, my opinion,
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          2  not in opposition to an extent to this reso, because

          3  you both have said it, the word "choice." It was

          4  always, and, again, I'll reiterate once again, it

          5  was never the intention of this Committee or Chair

          6  that I am to protect a certain industry, it's to

          7  give our workers choice.

          8                 I've got to appreciate DC 37's

          9  efforts to move toward transparency and move from a

         10  mail order prescription drug that went from

         11  mandatory mail order to one of choice.

         12                 UFT does not have mandatory mail

         13  order, it has one of choice. We're all saying the

         14  same thing, and we're going to start dealing with

         15  that from common ground. That's the common ground we

         16  all share, that we're offering our members or we

         17  want to offer our members choice.

         18                 MS. BROWNE: But here is the

         19  difficulty. I don't think you can say, as a

         20  legislative body, neither here nor in Albany, you

         21  cannot say to any benefit plan, you may not have

         22  mandatory mail. It may be in that plan's benefit to

         23  have a mandatory mail program. Many, many benefit

         24  plans throughout this country have mandatory mail.

         25  You can't usurp the authority they have as
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          2  fiduciaries to make that choice. That's our major

          3  problem.

          4                 And secondly, the way this

          5  legislation is written, there are provisions in it

          6  that per se, could possibly make our plan unlawful,

          7  and a new plan has been designed.

          8                 So, I think you're stepping into an

          9  area that is fraught with legal difficulties, that

         10  perhaps where jurisdiction does not lie, and that's

         11  a fundamental under or overwriting problem as well.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: What we're going

         13  to do, Ms. Browne, we're going to leave our

         14  jurisdictional issues to the courts, if need be. The

         15  bottom line is, the legislative body of the City

         16  Council, we like to think of ourselves as the voice

         17  of the people. The only reason that really we have

         18  promoted this reso, and obviously looking to promote

         19  to the State Legislature, proposed legislation, is

         20  that residents have complained to me personally, and

         21  I've heard the complaints throughout the City, they

         22  have had a problem with the mandatory mail order

         23  prescription drug policy. Therefore, we are trying

         24  to promote choice. That's why we're here today,

         25  because people have complaints.
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          2                 MS. BROWNE: I understand the notion

          3  of choice, but if you really looked at it

          4  statistically, you compare the number of complaints

          5  with the number of happy consumers, I guarantee you,

          6  it would be less than two percent.

          7                 MR. PEPPER: I could --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Hold on a

          9  second, and I will definitely get to you.

         10                 The bottom line is we want to hear

         11  from everyone, not just a select few, who are forced

         12  into doing mandatory, or select few who we are not

         13  going to push -- you know, you can't do mandatory

         14  mail order either.

         15                 We want to hear from all sides. So,

         16  therefore, we think the best way of doing that is

         17  offering choice.

         18                 MR. PEPPER: I think that when we keep

         19  on speaking about choice, choice has a price to it.

         20  There is no doubt it does. And I think if you bring

         21  our members in, our 150,000 members and ask them,

         22  we've legislated that the Welfare Fund can no longer

         23  have a mandatory mail or have a differential for

         24  going locally to a pharmacy for a maintenance drug,

         25  and tell them that co-pay goes from $30 to $60, I
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          2  think we could fill this room in about 60 seconds

          3  because they will start screaming why did you do

          4  that to their fund.

          5                 So, yes, we believe in choice also,

          6  as you do. But not to legislate to any sponsor the

          7  penalties that I'm looking at in the legislation.

          8  That's what's troubling to us, the way the

          9  legislation was written.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

         11                 Mr. Pepper, to your point, even if

         12  the arguable point or debatable point that you're

         13  saving money on the mandatory mail or the mail

         14  order, we're not going to say even mandatory

         15  anymore, because we are promoting choice, but even

         16  if you're saying it, you said it yourself in your

         17  statement, finally, it should be evident, that

         18  having both local, retail and mail order options is

         19  possible.

         20                 You're right. We agree with you. And

         21  I appreciate you mentioning that, because that's to

         22  your point exactly what we're trying to do.

         23                 If a consumer wants to pay a little

         24  extra for the convenience of walking to their local

         25  pharmacy, we're going to give it to them as their
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          2  choice. They can, if they wish, pay a little extra,

          3  to go see their local pharmacist. But they don't.

          4  And you feel to your point, both of you, that they

          5  want to save money, we're not exterminating or

          6  terminating mail order. They can mail order. That's

          7  the whole idea --

          8                 MR. PEPPER: However, I believe in the

          9  legislation there was a comment about no price

         10  differential being allowed. You just tipped that

         11  other part of the equation out in what you just

         12  said, Chairman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I think it was

         14  the $10. But also the other aspects, while we're on

         15  the other aspects of the Reso 334, let me quickly

         16  run through the other aspects of 334, and it

         17  includes that the employees be notified of the right

         18  to express a preference for a local pharmacy when

         19  mail order delivery is also offered.

         20                 The resolution would also indicate

         21  that the State legislation would require that

         22  employees and their families who receive

         23  prescription drug benefits receive 30 days notice

         24  prior to any change, prescription drug benefits, and

         25  the employees be given 14 days to inform their
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          2  employer of their preference.

          3                 Again, I think what I would like to

          4  do is deal from common ground, deal with what we all

          5  agree in, and I think, again, Mr. Pepper said it in

          6  his statement, that both can coexist.

          7                 And the previous testimony of the

          8  previous panel said so also, mail order and the

          9  going to a local pharmacy can coexist, leave it up

         10  to the consumer.

         11                 MS. BROWNE: Let me just make one

         12  other point.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Sure.

         14                 MS. BROWNE: On behalf of some of the

         15  smaller plans, we represent fairly large plans, but

         16  as you know in this City there are many, many plans

         17  administered by different entities, different

         18  unions. But some of those plans, just to survive, to

         19  keep afloat, have had to mandate mandatory mail

         20  order. If you make that, if you eliminate that as a

         21  choice, to keep those plans viable, they will go

         22  under.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Council Member

         24  Nelson.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Chair.

          3                 I will disclose my wife is a retired

          4  teacher. Sometimes she has not been thrilled with,

          5  in this case, express prescripts. Generally it works

          6  fine. Sometimes it doesn't.

          7                 But would it really adversely impact

          8  negatively, financially, or some other way on the

          9  UFT, if it got more out of the mail order?

         10                 MR. PEPPER: Absolutely.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Okay.

         12                 MR. PEPPER: Absolutely.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: A large

         14  percentage?

         15                 MR. PEPPER: Absolutely.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Which would in

         17  turn affect the membership?

         18                 MR. PEPPER: The whole plan design

         19  would change.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Okay.

         21                 In case that would happen, which I

         22  don't see it happening, citing the Maine experience

         23  in federal courts, but if it did it would be a

         24  tremendous disruption in present services or how?

         25                 MR. PEPPER: Absolutely.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: The structure

          3  itself?

          4                 MR. PEPPER: The structure would

          5  change, the pricing would change. The whole

          6  structure of the industry would change.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: And yet it

          8  seems not to worry if Maine follows through.

          9                 MR. PEPPER: Can I comment on Maine?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Sure.

         11                 MR. PEPPER: What I have heard behind

         12  the scenes about Maine legislation.

         13                 The people that currently have

         14  contracts right now there will continue with the

         15  contracts without making any adjustment, because any

         16  adjustment in that contract would fall under new

         17  Maine law. So, therefore everyone who has a contract

         18  with any PBM up there in Maine is stuck with the

         19  pricing they have now, and pricing changes all the

         20  time. We negotiate all the time and get better

         21  pricing. That will not change for those plans. We're

         22  watching it very carefully, also, because it's not a

         23  panacea. It's not a great thing that happened in

         24  Maine. Disclosure, yes, being able to have

         25  transparency, yes, but there were parts to the Maine
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          2  legislation that are very disconcerting.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Is there a

          4  threshold with people, if they choose choice, where

          5  you can go up to safely fiscally speaking, but it

          6  went beyond ten percent or whatever percent, that it

          7  would cause a crumbling of the system?

          8                 MR. PEPPER: Well, I probably would be

          9  out of a job and my president -- I'd be asking you

         10  folks to work on the prescription drug plan.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: And yet, you

         12  know, there's an old song "got along without you

         13  before I met you, going to get along without you

         14  now," how did you exist before this?

         15                 MR. PEPPER: The PBMs came in, as a

         16  matter of fact, we were the first unions in New York

         17  City to have a Prescription Benefit Manager. As

         18  large as we are, as large as our IT functions are,

         19  we cannot provide the services that we get currently

         20  to model. We have computer programs that come in and

         21  tell us what the usage is on a daily basis. We audit

         22  our plan every day with our Internal Pharmacy Unit,

         23  so we know what's happening at any point in time,

         24  and that's what the PBM brings to it.

         25                 I am not here talking about any
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          2  particular PBM, saying PBM is a -- it's just a fact

          3  of life, and more important is what Audrey said, as

          4  large as we are, my fellow unions in the City, I

          5  know what Audrey said is so true. They could not

          6  exist. As a matter of fact, part of the Maine

          7  legislation does not allow step therapy, and other

          8  programs that have been brought in. And when I

          9  brought this up at an MLC meeting there was shock in

         10  the room, and all of them were saying we couldn't

         11  survive without the step therapy programs and the

         12  other components that are a part of that design.

         13                 So, that's the most important feature

         14  here. What did we do before? It's been since '85

         15  we've been here. Before we had an old, our own

         16  internal pharmacy, with 18 pharmacists.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I'm sorry,

         18  since 1985?

         19                 MR. PEPPER: About '85, yes. So, it's

         20  a fact of life.

         21                 More importantly, which Audrey didn't

         22  address, is I think the attack, or rather than

         23  attack, excuse the word, the conferencing and trying

         24  to find out what's going on, how about there is some

         25  concern for the prescription drug manufacturers. It
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          2  was released yesterday, if you saw the New York

          3  Times, what price increases from the manufacturers

          4  occurred, specifically January 1st of this year,

          5  when Medicare Part D kicked in, it's the highest

          6  increase in any quartile in the last six years. And

          7  it's amazing that it happened the 1st. So, everyone

          8  is going for the PBM who buys their drug from the

          9  manufacturer, I don't see any legislation, I don't

         10  see any uproar about the manufacturer. Where is

         11  everyone on this issue?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Tremendous

         13  frustration. I think in the City Council, I believe

         14  health deals with that, Mr. Chair?

         15                 This is one of the biggest

         16  frustrations I have, and I believe it exponentially.

         17  How they're allowed to get away with this. How you

         18  can have a Procrit shot, I think it's like $3,000

         19  for instance, and other drugs, and co-pays of 80 and

         20  100, how the feds let this go on I think is a

         21  tremendous story therein. And I only wish that this

         22  would be exposed more.

         23                 MS. BROWNE: You know, Michael Moore

         24  is actually doing a documentary right now on the

         25  pharmaceutical industry.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Oh, some

          3  people better be quaking in their boots with that

          4  one. And I'm not saying that to be pejorative or

          5  facetiously. I hope it does some good. It appears

          6  that they've really been allowed to pig out,

          7  tremendous extent, on poor people many times, and on

          8  people who are sick, and I think it's a tremendous

          9  disgrace in this country. But, okay, that's another

         10  issue. Unfortunately, I hope the proper authorities

         11  deal with it.

         12                 So, it's since 1985. I'm sorry, I'm

         13  going to wrap this up for me, since 1985 it started

         14  off, I guess, and it just went exponentially, since

         15  that point, it may have been like a small percentage

         16  of your membership?

         17                 MR. PEPPER: Right. It provides

         18  benefits and structures that we never could think of

         19  before.

         20                 It provides us with financial

         21  incentive that we never could think of before. We

         22  just changed, our plan was $2 and $5 since that

         23  time. This year, finally in July I broke down, I had

         24  to tell our president, chairs, our trust as well, we

         25  have to make the move, and we had to change it. We
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          2  finally changed it to 515 35 which was a sticker

          3  shock for our members. But all those years, people

          4  say how did you do it? It was because of careful

          5  planning, using the services of the PBM to model, to

          6  figure out which is the financial, the best

          7  financial deal for us to get and to go out there and

          8  negotiate it with them, and that's what we did.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Because I have

         10  done co-pays myself, up to $80, perhaps they were

         11  more at the time, but it's usually they're about I

         12  think $10 now.

         13                 MR. PEPPER: 515 or -- in our plan.

         14  It's a 3/2 plan now, yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: 15 or 30,

         16  which really --

         17                 MR. PEPPER: Double that for a mail

         18  order. So you're getting two months, three months

         19  supply for two co-pays. That's, you know, you can't

         20  beat that, even at the prices we have now.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes. Don't get

         22  sick in this country, folks. It's really, it's going

         23  to put you down quicker.

         24                 All right, thank you.

         25                 Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

          3  Council Member Nelson.

          4                 I want to welcome Council Member Jim

          5  Gennaro from this Committee. Thank you very much.

          6                 Mr. Pepper, you mentioned in your

          7  statement that you believe there are studies that

          8  show errors in dispensing, errors in dispensing at

          9  the local pharmacy level. Just to complete my file,

         10  which is full of studies at this point, do you have

         11  or know of any concrete studies, I don't think you

         12  have them with you, but do you --

         13                 MR. PEPPER: I will certainly get that

         14  to your office.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Just again, I

         16  look to complete my file on that.

         17                 Any other questions from my

         18  colleagues at this point?

         19                 I want to thank both of you for being

         20  here today and for your position. Again, we

         21  appreciate your time. I appreciate the fact that,

         22  again, I like do deal with common ground so we do

         23  what's best for our consumers, City workforce, City

         24  residents, that's always our focus. And I appreciate

         25  your focus.
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          2                 Again, I appreciate that both of you

          3  both have a plan that offers some sense of choice.

          4  And I do appreciate that. But thank you very much

          5  for your time and your testimony. Thank you.

          6                 MR. PEPPER: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: There being no

          8  other witnesses, I want to thank you all for being

          9  here. Just as a procedural note, both the

         10  introduction heard earlier today and the resolution

         11  on this part, basically we have now discussed both

         12  of them, they both will be ready for a vote. Being

         13  this is budget time, our committees are pretty much

         14  occupied with the budget, I am hopeful that we can

         15  vote this out sooner than later, but we will

         16  eventually have a vote on both of these and we will

         17  let you know.

         18                 But thank you very much for being

         19  here. This meeting is adjourned. Thank you.

         20                 (The following written testimony was

         21  read into the record.)

         22

         23

         24  Written Testimony Of:

         25  Political Action and Legislation Department
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          2  DC 37

          3

          4

          5  Resolution No. 334 in support of S.5456-A/A.8420-A

          6

          7                 This Committee is being asked to pass

          8  a Resolution in support of a bill, "The Employee's

          9  Mail Order Pharmacy Bill of Rights", pending in the

         10  New York State Legislature. This proposed

         11  legislation purports to protect the business

         12  interests of the independent pharmacists throughout

         13  New York.

         14                 It does not protect the interests of

         15  consumers, who should be free to purchase drugs from

         16  whatever source offers them the best price.

         17                 This proposed legislation also

         18  interferes with the statutory right of unions,

         19  employers, and countless other groups that have

         20  bargained for and designed benefit plans that best

         21  suit the needs of their respective constituents. It

         22  is likely that such legislation is pre-empted by

         23  federal law and would be found to be unlawful under

         24  state and local laws as well.

         25                 Rather that support legislation that
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          2  is aimed a protecting (sic) the interests of a

          3  select few in the business community, what is truly

          4  needed is legislation that forces prescription

          5  benefit managers to fully disclose to the consumer

          6  how they make their profits and permits full

          7  auditing rights by benefit plans that offer

          8  prescription drugs to their members. Such

          9  legislation has been upheld in the federal courts in

         10  the State of Maine.

         11                 Attached is a letter in opposition to

         12  this type of legislation that DC 37 sent to City

         13  Council members in May of this year.

         14                 On behalf of our 120,000 public

         15  employee members and 50,000+ retirees, District

         16  Council 37 strongly urges you to oppose this

         17  Resolution.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 2:13 p.m.)
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          3

          4
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          7
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          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified
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